
 

 
1 

 
 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Stonecrest CID Advisory Committee 
 

Councilman Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 
Matthew Hampton – Member 
Jim Kelly – Member 
Bernard Knight – Member 

 

Councilman Rob Turner - District 2  
Cornell McBride – Member 
Michael McClinton – Member 
Jonathan Bartlett – Ex Officio           
Christopher Sanders – Ex Officio 

 

 

CID ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
September 14, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 

Citizen Access: Stonecrest YouTube Live Channel 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Councilman Jimmy Clanton, Chair 
II. ROLL CALL: Councilman Jimmy Clanton, Chair 
III. AGENDA: 

 
a. Approval of the Minutes from 8/31/21 
b. Public Comments, Jonathan Bartlett 
c. Update on East Metro Dekalb CID, Christopher Sanders 
d. Discussion of East Metro Dekalb CID Board Appointment, Jonathan Bartlett 
e. Review of Draft MOU with East Metro Dekalb CID, Christopher Sanders 
f. Discussion of Additional/Alternative CID Agreement Structures, Bernie Knight 
g. Proposed formation of Executive Committee of the CID Advisory Committee, 

Bernie Knight 
h. Committee Member Comments 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
Attachments: 

1. Minutes of the 8/31/21 Meeting 
2. Draft MOU with East Metro Dekalb CID (2017) 
3. Map of East Metro CID 
4. Dekalb Co. Resolution Establishing the East Metro CID (2014) 
5. Dekalb Co. Resolution Expanding the East Metro CID (2015) 
6. Stonecrest Charter Section 1.06  
7. Stone Mountain CID and Dekalb Co. Cooperation Agreement (2011) 
8. Stone Mountain CID and Dekalb Co. Master Agreement (2015) 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCp3rYzHzhZvd9Y7Ruf1O6kg


 

 
2 

9. Written Consent for the Stonecrest/Lithonia Industrial Park CID 
10. East Metro CID Parcels within the City of Stonecrest 
 
Additional Background: 
1. ULI Technical Assistance Panel for the East Metro Dekalb CID (2016) 
2. Ready for the Smarter City: How CIDs are Building the Future (2021) 

https://ulidigitalmarketing.blob.core.windows.net/ulidcnc/2019/06/ULI-Atlanta-East-Metro-DeKalb-Final-Report.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5fda4f3a5237754a08b3bb28/t/6022b5e3cf396968a67b576c/1612887527083/Ready+for+the+Smart%28er%29+City.pdf


Meetings Calendar
MEETS MEETS MEETS

CWS City Council Work Session 2nd Mon 6pm P&Z Planning & Zoning Commission 1st Tue 6pm FEC SFEC - Film & Entertainment Commission 3rd Thu
CCM City Council Meeting 4th Mon 6pm ZBA ZBA – Zoning Board of Appeals 3rd Tue 6pm SAC SSAC - SPLOST Advisory Committee 3rd Wed 6:30pm
CID CID - Community Improvement District Bi-We Tues 5pm ZS Zoning Summit See Dates 6pm FOC Finance Oversight Committee See Dates 7pm

SHA SHA - Stonecrest Housing Authority 2nd Wed 4pm CPI Community Planning Information See Dates 6pm P&R Parks & Recs Advisory Committee See Dates
URA URA – Urban Redevelopment Authority As Needed ZWS Zoning Special Called Work Sessions See Dates 6pm CBA CBA - Construction Board of Appeals As Needed

H Holiday
HW Weekend/Holiday

WE Weekend
Labor Day 2 3 4

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th

P&Z
6pm

SHA
4pm

ZS
6pm

CWS
6pm

CID
5pm

CPI
6pm

FEC
TBD

ZWS
6pm

ZBA
6pm

FOC
7??

FOC
7??

CCM
6pm

CID
5pm

SAC
6:30

FOC
7pm

1 Columbus Day 3 3 4

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su

P&Z
6pm

CID
5pm

SHA
4pm

ZS
6pm

ZBA
6pm

CPI
6pm

FEC
TBD

ZWS
6pm

CCM
6pm

CID
5pm

FOC
7pm

CWS
6pm

SAC
6:30

1 2 Veterans Day 3 4 Thanksgiving 5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu

P&Z
6pm

CWS
6pm

CID
5pm

SHA
4pm

ZBA
6pm

CPI
6pm

FEC
TBD

CCM
6pm

CID
5pm

SAC
6:30

ZS
6pm

FOC
7pm

FOC
7pm

1 2 3 Christmas Eve Christmas 4
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr

CID
5pm

SHA
4pm

CWS
6pm

CPI
6pm

FEC
TBD

CID
5pm

CCM
6pm

P&Z
6pm

SAC
6:30

ZBA
6pm

November 2021

Meetings, Sessions, 
Commissions, 

Committees, Authorities 
& Boards 

2021

September 2021

October 2021

H H

Meetings, Sessions, 
Commissions, 

Committees, Authorities 
& Boards 

H

H

Meetings, Sessions, 
Commissions, 

Committees, Authorities 
& Boards 

H

Meetings, Sessions, 
Commissions, 

Committees, Authorities 
& Boards 

H H

H

December 2021





 

 
1 

 
 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Stonecrest CID Advisory Committee 
 

Councilman Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 
Matthew Hampton – Member 
Jim Kelly – Member 
Bernard Knight – Member 

 

Councilman Rob Turner - District 2  
Cornell McBride – Member 
Michael McClinton – Member 
Jonathan Bartlett – Ex Officio           
Christopher Sanders – Ex Officio 

 

 

CID ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
August 31, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 

Citizen Access: Stonecrest YouTube Live Channel 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Bartlett at 5:00 pm. 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  
 

Mr. Bartlett called the roll and all members were present. Also present were Mayor 
Pro Tem George Turner, Acting City Manager Janice Allen Jackson and Deputy City 
Manager Jim Nichols.  

 
III. AGENDA: 

 
a. Committee member introductions 

 
Committee members introduced themselves in turn.  
 

b. Committee objectives 
 

   Mr. Bartlett described the goals and objectives of the Committee by reading from 
the resolution that established the Committee and was approved by City Council 
on August 9, 2021. 

 
   Councilman Clanton and Councilman Rob Turner added their thanks to the 

Committee members and shared their hopes for a successful Committee that 
supports the growth of the community and its commercial areas.       

     

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCp3rYzHzhZvd9Y7Ruf1O6kg


 

 
2 

c. Election of Chair and Vice Chair  
 
Nominations were heard for Chair of the CID Advisory Committee.  Councilman 
Rob Turner nominated Councilman Jimmy Clanton.  There was a second by Mr. 
Knight and by a vote of 7-0 Councilman Jimmy Clanton was elected Chair.  
 
Nominations were heard for Vice Chair of the CID Advisory Committee.  
Councilman Rob Turner nominated Matthew Hampton.  There was a second by 
Councilman Clanton and by a vote of 7-0 Matthew Hampton was elected Vice 
Chair.  

 
d. Approval of meeting schedule 

 
There was discussion about the meeting schedule going forward. The Committee 
must meet at least quarterly per the requirements of the resolution that established 
the Committee, but can meet as frequently as desired. While there was interest in a 
weekly cadence presented by Mr. Knight, there was a motion by Councilman 
Clanton to meet on a bi-weekly basis and that motion carried 7-0.  
 
The committee agreed that for the time being it will meet every other Tuesday at 
5:00 pm.  The next meeting is scheduled for September 14, 2021. The meeting 
schedule may be revisited as dictated by the Committee’s progress. 
 

e. Comments 
 
There were no public comments received.  Each committee member shared 
closing comments.  Mr. McClinton shared concerns about the potential to be taxed 
in multiple CIDs, or the opportunity to choose which CID to join.  It was 
explained that neither scenario is considered likely but could be addressed in 
future meetings.  In closing, Mayor Pro Tem George Turner shared his gratitude to 
the members and his hopes for a successful Committee.   
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:45.  
 
 
Submitted by Jonathan Bartlett, September 2, 2021 





1 
 

MASTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF STONECREST AND 

EAST METRO DEKALB COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 This Agreement is made and entered into this   day of   , 2017 by and 

between Stonecrest, Georgia (“City”), a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, and the East 

Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District (“CID”), a community improvement district 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia with offices in DeKalb County. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, CID is a community improvement district authorized under 2008 Ga. Laws 

3815 and approved by DeKalb County by Resolution prior to the incorporation of the city; and 

 WHEREAS, CID was created to address and improve transportation in the East DeKalb 

area; and 

 WHEREAS, by Resolution adopted May 13, 2014 the DeKalb County Board of 

Commissioners, prior to the incorporation of the City of Stonecrest, determined that facilitating 

and expediting the implementation of transportation improvement projects in the East DeKalb area 

through the CID will enhance air quality, reduce highway and street congestion, promote public 

safety, enhance economic development, and generally improve the quality of life in the East 

DeKalb area and the County as a whole; and 

 WHEREAS, the CID is uniquely positioned to facilitate and expedite the implementation 

of transportation improvement projects previously identified by the Council and yet to be identified 

by the Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a master agreement with CID establishing the 

framework whereunder CID shall be authorized to proceed with the implementation of the 

remaining transportation improvement projects as projects are identified by the Council. 



2 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits hereinafter set 

forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. 

 This Agreement is a master agreement that sets forth the basic terms and conditions 

pursuant to which CID will perform services for the City.  Upon the identification and approval of 

a transportation improvement project (“Project”) by the Council, the City will issue a written 

Notice to Proceed to CID.  The Notice to Proceed will specify the details for the Project and must 

include a term for completion and a total cost for the Project.  CID will proceed to implement such 

Project consistent with the provisions of this Agreement and with any additional provisions 

associated with a particular Project as identified and approved by the Council and set forth in the 

Notice to Proceed.  In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency between the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement and the terms and conditions of a particular Project identified and 

approved by the Council as set forth in the Notice to Proceed, the latter shall govern and control.   

2. 

 The services to be performed under this Agreement shall commence within ten (10) 

calendar days after CID’s receipt of the first written Notice to Proceed from the City for an 

identified and approved Project and shall be for an initial term of three hundred sixty-five (365) 

calendar days from and including the date of receipt of the notice to proceed (“Initial Term”) and 

shall automatically renew for five (5) additional terms of three hundred sixty-five (365) calendar 

days upon the same terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement unless the City provides 

written notice of its intent not to renew at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of the 

current term of the Agreement.  It is understood by the parties that more than one (1) Project may 



3 
 

be in progress simultaneously during the term of this Agreement.  It is further understood by the 

Parties that any outstanding Notices to Proceed terminate simultaneously with this Agreement. 

 In the case of termination of the Agreement before completion of the work, CID will be 

paid only for the work completed as of the date of termination as determined by the City. 

3. 

 Within ten (10) business days of the identification and approval by the Council of a 

Project(s), the City shall place the sum(s) identified by the Council into an appropriate account 

established by the City’s Director of Finance and notify CID of same by issuing a Notice to 

Proceed. 

4. 

 Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice to Proceed, and after consulting with the City’s 

Director of Public Works, CID shall proceed to enter into a contract with a qualified engineering 

firm or construction firm, as the case may be, (“Consultant”) to perform the work required to 

complete the Project(s), at a cost not to exceed the sum(s) identified by the Council and with a 

term not to exceed the term of this Agreement.  If CID cannot identify an acceptable Consultant 

or provide an acceptable contract within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Notice to Proceed, the 

Notice to Proceed shall automatically terminate.  All contracts must state (1) that CID can 

terminate the contract(s) at any time for any reason whatsoever; (2) that the contract(s) is between 

CID and the Consultant, and the City has no obligations to the Consultant; and (3) require the 

Consultant to indemnify, defend and hold CID harmless for any damages and/or injuries resulting 

from the work. 

5. 



4 
 

 The City and CID shall approve all Project scope of work and schedules of work to be 

issued to the Consultant by CID.  Prior to issuing all Project scope and schedules of work, CID 

shall submit said scopes and schedules to City for approval.  Upon the City’s and CID’s joint 

approval of the scope of work and schedules of work, CID shall issue work authorization to the 

Consultant.  Invoices submitted by Consultant to CID shall promptly be submitted to the City for 

review and approval.  CID shall require that the Consultant’s invoices be itemized on a percent 

completed basis as described in the Project scope and schedule of work to show the date of service 

and description of service in sufficient detail and specificity to allow the City to determine 

precisely what work and service (including CID’s administrative fees not to exceed two percent 

(2%) each payment covers.  The City will approve invoices, at the City’s sole discretion, within 

two (2) weeks of receipt from CID and shall remit payment to CID for approved line items only.  

Upon receipt of payment from the City, CID shall submit payment to the Consultant for approved 

line items only.  In case of termination of the Agreement before completion of work, CID will be 

paid only for the work completed as of the date of termination as determined by the City. 

6. 

 CID agrees to cooperate and work with the City and obtain any permits as may be necessary 

and appropriate to complete the Project(s) in an expedited manner.  Any Project work affecting 

utilities shall be coordinated through the City, or the State of Georgia, as applicable.  The City is 

authorized to inspect and approve any work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

7. 

 Any notices required under this Agreement shall be sent via facsimile, with an original by 

first class mail, to the following: 

 If to the City: 



5 
 

   
 
 with a copy to: 
   
   
 
 If to CID: 
 
  Nicole M. Hall, President 
  East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District 
  5686 Fulton Industrial Boulevard 
  # 366152 
  Atlanta, GA 30336 
 
 with a copy to: 
  
  Fred Daniels, Chairman 
  East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District 
  Citizens Trust Bank 
  75 Piedmont Ave. – Suite 1200 
  Atlanta, GA 30303    
  Fax: 404.575.8234 
 
   

 
 All notices sent to the above addresses shall be binding unless such address has been 

changed in writing provided to the other party. 

8. 

 The City and CID each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators, 

and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement; 

except as above, neither this Agreement or the rights granted by it shall be assigned or transferred 

by CID or the City under any circumstances.  This restriction on assignments and transfers shall 

apply to assignments or transfers by operation of law, as well as by contract, merger, or 

consolidation.  Any attempted assignment or transfer in abrogation of this prohibition is void.  

Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officers or 



6 
 

agents of the City, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone 

other than the parties to this Agreement. 

9. 

 CID shall be responsible for the accuracy of the work and any error and/or omission made 

by CID in ant phase of the work under this Agreement. 

10. 

 If CID is asked by the City or if the CID identifies requirements to perform work beyond 

the scope of this Agreement or any specific Notice to Proceed for which payment is desired, it 

shall notify the City in writing, state that the work is considered outside the basic scope of work 

of this Agreement or any specific Notice to Proceed, give a proposed cost for the additional work, 

and obtain the approval in writing from the City prior to performing the additional work for which 

it is to be paid.  The City shall in no way be held liable for any work performed under this Paragraph 

10 which has not first been approved in writing by the City. 

11. 

 All documents, including drawings, estimates, specifications, and data, are and remain the 

property of the City.  CID agrees that the City may reuse any and all plans, specifications, 

drawings, estimates, or any other data or documents described herein in its sole discretion without 

first obtaining permission of CID and without any payment of any monies to CID therefor.  

However, any reuse of the documents by the City on a different site shall be at its risk and CID 

shall have no liability where such documents are reused. 

12. 

 Notwithstanding Paragraph 2, the City may unilaterally terminate this Agreement, in whole 

or in part, for the City’s convenience, or because of failure of CID to fulfill the obligations of this 



7 
 

Agreement in any respect.  The City shall terminate by delivering to CID, with at least thirty (30) 

days notice, a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of 

termination.  If terminated by the City, the written notice shall be sent to CID as provided in 

Paragraph 7.  If this Agreement is so terminated, CID shall be paid as provided hereinbefore. 

13. 

 As between the City and CID as the other party, CID shall assume responsibility and 

liability for any damage, loss, or injury, including death, of any kind or nature whatever to person 

or property, including employees and property of the City, caused by or resulting from any error 

or omission of CID, or the negligent act of CID, or its subcontractors or Consultants or any of their 

officers, agents, servants, or employees, arising from the performance of the work under this 

Agreement.  CID shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, 

servants, or employees, arising from the performance of the work under this Agreement.  CID shall 

defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, servants, or employees 

from and against any and all claims, loss, damage, charge, or expense to which they or any of them 

may be put or subjected by reason of any such damage, loss, or injury.  CID expressly agrees to 

defend against claims brought or actions filed against the City, where such claim or action 

involves, in whole or in part, the subject of the indemnity contained herein, whether such claims 

or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed.  Provided, however, that nothing herein 

contained shall be construed to be a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity or any other 

immunities. 

14. 

CID shall provide to the City or require that the Consultant provide to the City the 

following: 



8 
 

1. Certificates of Insurance in companies doing business in Georgia and acceptable to the 

City covering: 

a. Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance, or proof that CID or Consultant 

is not required to provide such coverage under State law; 

b. Professional Liability Insurance on CID’s or Consultant’s services in this 

Agreement with limit of $1,000,000; 

c. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering all operations: 

• Each Occurrence - $1,000,000 
• Fire Damage - $250,000 
• Medical Expense - $ 10,000 
• Personal & Advertising Injury General Aggregate - $2,000,000 
• Products & Completed Operations - $2,000,000 
• Contractual Liability where applicable.  

d. Business Auto Liability Insurance with a minimum $1,000,000 Combined 
Single limit/Each Occurrence (Including operation of non-owned, owned and 
hired autos). 
 

2. Certificate of Insurance must be executed in accordance with the following provisions: 

a. Certificates to contain policy number, policy limits, and policy expiration date 

of all policies issued in accordance with this Agreement; 

b. Certificates to contain location and operations to which the insurance applies: 

c. Certificates to contain CID or Consultant’s protective coverage for any 

subcontractor’s operations; 

d. Stonecrest, GA shall be named as Additional Insured under any General 

Liability, Business Auto and Umbrella policies.  

e. Certificates are to be issued: 

 
 
 



9 
 

3. CID or Consultant shall be wholly responsible for securing certificates of insurance 

coverage as set forth above from all subcontractors who are engaged in this work. 

4. CID agrees to carry or require via contract that the Consultant carry statutory Worker’s 

Compensation Insurance and to have all subcontractors likewise carry such insurance. 

15. 

 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of Georgia. 

 

 

16. 

 This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made and performed in Stonecrest, Georgia.  

For the purpose of venue, all suits or causes of action arising out of this Agreement shall be brought 

in the courts of DeKalb City, Georgia. 

17. 

 This Agreement may be modified or amended by the City to reduce the scope of work or 

Project description upon seven (7) days written notice; the written notice shall be sent to CID as 

provided in Paragraph 7; provided, however, that the City shall be responsible for payment for 

work completed under the original scope of work or Project description through the seven (7) days 

written notice period. 

18. 

 The relationship between the City and CID shall be that of owner and independent 

contractor. 

19. 



10 
 

 This Agreement constitutes the sole contract between the City and the CID.  The terms, 

conditions, and requirements of this Agreement may not be modified, except by Change Order.  

No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the City, either before 

or after the execution of the Agreement, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations 

herein contained.  No representations, oral or written, shall be binding on the parties unless 

expressly incorporated herein. No Change Order shall be enforceable unless approved by official 

action of the City as provided by law or in this Agreement.  

20. 

 If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 

shall to any extent be held invalid, then the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such 

provision to persons or circumstances, other than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be 

affected thereby, and each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest 

extent permitted by law. 

21. 

Each party warrants and represents that it is authorized to execute and enter into this 

Agreement. 

22. 

 Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

23. 

 The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date first written above. 

 

 

 



11 
 

 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)  



12 
 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and caused their seals to 

be affixed hereupon in four (4) counterparts, each to be considered an original by their authorized 

representatives. 

EAST METRO DEKALB COMMUNITY                       DEKALB CITY, GEORGIA 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS 

 

By:    (SEAL)  By:    (SEAL) 
 Signature      JASON LARY 
        Mayor, 
        Stonecrest, Georgia 
 Name (Typed or Printed) 
           
 ADMINISTRATOR               Date 
 Title 
 
 47-2008150_________  
 Federal Tax I.D. Number 
 
    

Date 
 
NOTARY:      ATTEST: 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE           
  DAY OF   , 20                                                , CCC 
       Clerk of the City of Storenrest 
        
Notary Public       
My Commission Expires:    
 
  
 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
              
Department Director     City Attorney Signature 
 
              
       City Attorney Name 
       (Typed or Printed) 

 



13 
 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

 I, _____________________________, certify the following: 

 That I am the duly elected and authorized Secretary of the East Metro DeKalb Community 

Improvement district (hereinafter referred to as the “CID”), a CID organized and authorized under 

the laws of the State of Georgia.  That said CID has, through lawful Resolution of the Council of 

Directors of the CID, duly authorized and directed Fred Daniels, in his official capacity as 

Chairman of CID, to enter into and execute the following described agreement with:  

The City of Stonecrest, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and East Metro 

DeKalb Community Improvement District. 

 
 That the foregoing Resolution of the Council of Directors has not been rescinded, modified, 

amended, or otherwise changed in any way since the adoption thereof, and is in full force and 

effect on the date hereof. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and seal. 

 This  day of     , 20 . 

 

           (SEAL) 
       

______________________________ 
      Secretary (Printed Name) 
 
 

 

 









REV. 10/02  
 

 
DEKALB COUNTY 

 
ITEM NO. I4 

 
 

 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

 
  

 
HEARING TYPE 

 
ACTION TYPE 

Action  
MEETING DATE:  May 13, 2014 Resolution 

 
SUBSTITUTE 

 
SUBJECT:   East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT: 

 
Office of the CEO  PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
  YES   NO 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 
 PAGES: 

 
     YES   No   
 
 
 

 INFORMATION  
CONTACT: 
 
PHONE NUMBER: 

 
Commissioner Larry Johnson 
Commissioner Stan Watson 
Interim CEO Lee May 
 
(404) 371-2425 
(404) 371-3681 
(404) 371-6271 

 
PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this agenda item is for the Board of Commissioners to consider and approve a resolution 
to create the East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District (CID). 
 
NEED/IMPACT: 
Consent of the commercial property owners within this district, provides evidence of a need for 
improvements to (1) street construction and maintenance, (2) parks and recreational areas and facilities, (3) 
stormwater and sewage collection and disposal systems, (4) development, storage, treatment and 
distribution of water, (5) public transportation, (6) terminal, dock and parking facilities, and (7) other such 
services and facilities appropriate for creation and improvement by a community improvement district. 
Because the district will operate on the revenues from its self-imposed tax increase, and state and federal 
grants, the creation of this district will provide a solution to these needs without having a negative impact 
on DeKalb County's revenues or resources. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
The recommendation is approval of this resolution to create the East Metro DeKalb Community 
Improvement District, which shall have initial boundaries as described in the Resolution.  Exhibit “A” 
is a map of the proposed CID, and Exhibit “B” is a list of tax parcels. 
  

19 





RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION TO CREATE THE EAST METRO DEKALB 
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, by Act of the Georgia Legislature, 2008 Ga. Laws 3817 (H.B. 816), the 

Legislature enacted the DeKalb County Community Improvement Districts Act of 2008 ("Act"); and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the owners of real property within the proposed East Metro DeKalb 

Community Improvement District ("East Metro DeKalb CID"), as shown on the map attached hereto as 

Exhibit "A", incorporated herein by reference, which real property will be subject to taxes, fees, and 

assessments levied by the East Metro DeKalb CID District Board ("District Board"), have consented in 

writing to the creation of the East Metro DeKalb CID with the proposed boundaries as shown on the 

above-referenced map; and 

WHEREAS, the owners of real property within the proposed East Metro DeKalb CID 

constituting at least 75% by value of all real property within said East Metro DeKalb CID that will be 

subject to taxes, fees and assessments levied by the District Board, according to the most recent 

approved DeKalb County ad valorem tax digest, have consented in writing to the creation of the East 

Metro DeKalb CID with the proposed boundaries as shown on the above-referenced map; and 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of DeKalb County has determined that the activation of 

the East Metro DeKalb CID would be in the best interest of, and would promote the health, safety and 

welfare of, the citizens of DeKalb County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing authority of DeKalb County 

consents to the creation of a community improvement district to be known as the East Metro DeKalb 

CID and to be comprised of the geographical area as shown on the map and list attached hereto as 

Exhibit "A" and Exhibit “B”, respectively for the provision of the following governmental services and 

facilities: 



(1) Street and road construction and maintenance, including curbs, sidewalks, street  
lights, improvement of truck traffic capacity, and devices to control the flow of traffic 
on streets and roads; 

(2) Parks and recreation areas and facilities, including the installation and  
maintenance of general landscape improvements and area branding; 

(3) Stormwater and sewage collection and disposal systems; 
(4) Development, storage, treatment, purification and distribution of water; 
(5) Public transportation, including, but not limited to, services intended to reduce the  

volume of automobile traffic, to transport two or more persons in common vehicles or 
conveyances, to improve air quality, and to provide bicycle and pedestrian facilities; 

(6) Terminal and dock facilities and parking facilities; and 
(7) Such other services and facilities as may be provided for by general law,  

specifically including enhanced security services. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the governing authority of DeKalb County shall appoint 

its two appointees to the District Board in a separate action. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a caucus of electors, as defined in the Act, be held on 

June 20, 2014 at the Hilton Garden Inn, 7890 Mall Ring Road, Lithonia, Georgia, 30058, for the 

purpose of electing five (5) District Board members. Registration shall begin at 9:00 a.m. and 

conclude at 9:30 a.m., with no person arriving at the registration table after 9:30 a.m. being permitted 

to vote. Notice to electors of said caucus of electors shall be published in the legal organ of DeKalb 

County as provided by law. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all District Board members shall take an oath of office 

upon election to faithfully administer their duties under the Act. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners and Interim 

Chief Executive Officer of DeKalb County, Georgia is directed to forward an executed copy of this 

resolution to the Tax Commissioner of DeKalb County. 



ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of DeKalb County, Georgia, this ______ day of 

___________________, 2014.    

 

 

     _______________________________________ 
     LARRY JOHNSON 
     Presiding Officer 
     Board of Commissioners 
     DeKalb County, Georgia  
 
 
APPROVED by the Interim Chief Executive Officer of DeKalb County, Georgia, this ______ 

day of ___________________, 2014.    

 

 

     _______________________________________ 
     LEE MAY  
     Interim Chief Executive Officer 
     DeKalb County, Georgia  

 

ATTEST:  

 

________________________________ 
BARBARA H. SANDERS, CCC 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
And Chief Executive Officer of  
DeKalb County, Georgia 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
________________________________ 
O.V. BRANTLEY 
County Attorney  
DeKalb County, Georgia 



Exhibit A – Proposed East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District Map 
  



0 3,400 6,800 10,2001,700

Feet

%&'(20

%&'(285

%&'(20

MM
AAIINN

SSTT

KK
EE

LLLL EE
YY

CC
HH

AA
PP

EE
LL

RR
DD

YYOOUU NNGG RRDD

HHIILLLLAANNDD AALLEE

DDRR

PPOONNCC EE

DD
EE

LLEEOONN AA VV

EE

PP
HH

II LL
LL

II PP
SS

RR
DD

WW
EE

SS
LL
EE

YY
CC

HH
AA

PP
EE

LL
RR

DD

SC
O

TT B
LV

D

SC
O

TT B
LV

D

FFLLAA
TT

SSHH OOAALLSS
RR DD

MM
EE
MM

OO
RR

IIAA
LL

DD
RR

EE CCOOLL LLEEGGEE AAVVEE

CCOOVVIINNGGTTOO NN DDRR

HH
AA

MM
BB

RR
II CC

KK

RR
DD

HH OOSSEEAA LL

WWIILLLLIIAAMMSS DD RR

SS
TT

OO
NN

EE

MM
OO

UU
NN

TT
AA

II NN
SS

TT

CO VIN GTON  RD

CO VIN GTON  RD

CCLLIIFF TTOONN SSPPRR IINN GGSS RR DD

SNAPFINGER WOODS DRSNAPFINGER WOODS DR

CCOO VVIINNGGTTOONN HHWWYY

REDAN RDREDAN RD

CC
AA

NN
DD

LL
EE

RR
RR

DD

GLENWOOD RDGLENWOOD RD

RROO CCKK BBRR IIDD GGEE RRDD

S
A

M
S

 X
IN

G

S
A

M
S

 X
IN

G

WW
EE

LL
LL
BB

OO
RR

NN
RR

DD

WW
PPOONN CC

EE
DD

EE
LLEEOO NN AAVVEE

OO
AA

KK
VV

AA
LL
EE

RR
DD

EE
PP
OO

NN
CCEE DDEE

LL
EE

OO
NN

AAVVEE

BBRR
OO

WW
NNSS

MM
II LL

LL
RR

DD

FF LL AATT SS HH OOAA
LLSS

PP
KK
WW

YY

SS

CCOO
LLUUMM

BB IIAA

DD
RR

DDEE
KK

AA
LL

BB
II NN

DD
UU

SS
TT

RR
II AA

LL

WW
AA

YY

HH
O O

W W
A A

R R
D D

S S
T T

N N
E E

2 2
N N

D D
A A

V V
E E

S S
E E

GGLLEENN WWOOOO DD AAVVEE

NN DD EECCAATTUURR
RRDD

PP
AA

NN
OO

LL
AA

RR
DD

MARBUT RDMARBUT RD

CC
LL
IIFF

TT
OO

NN
CC

HH
UU

RR
CC

HH
RR

D D

HHUURRSS TTRRDD

RR IIVVEERR RRDD

BBOOUU LLDDEERRCCRREE SSTT RR DD

EE
VV
AA

NN
SS

MM
IILL

LL
RR

DD

EE
LL

A A
K K

E E
DD

RR
S S

E E

WW CCOOLLLL EEGGEE AAVVEE

CCOO MMMMEERR
CC

EE

DD RR

PP LL EEAASSAANN TT HH IILLLL RRDD

NN

AVONDALE RD

AVONDALE RD

CCOOLLLLEEGGEE

AAVVEE

RR OOCCKK
SSPPRRIINN GG SS RRDD

SS SSTTOONNEE
MMOO

UUNNTTAA
IINN

LL IITTHHOO
NN

II AA
RR

DD

LLEEHHIIGG
HH BBLLVVDD

WW
HHOO WWAARRDD AAVVEE

EE
LLAA

KKEE

RRDD

DEKALB

DEKALB

AVE
AVE

DURHAM
DURHAM

PARK RD
PARK RD

RAINBOW DRRAINBOW DR

MCAFEE RDMCAFEE RD

NN

CC
LL

AA
RR

E E
N N

D D
O O

N N
AA

VV
EE

FAIRINGTONFAIRINGTON

RDRD

PARKPARK
PLPL

MM
CC

DD
AA

NN
II EE

LL
MM

II LL
LL

RR
DD

FFAA
YY
EE

TT
TT
EE

VV
IILL

LL
EE

RR
DD

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

D
M

ID
W

A
Y

 R
D

PP
AA

NN
TT

HH
EE

RR
SS

VV
I IL L

L L
E E

RR
DD

SS
TT
EE

WW
AA

RR
T T

MM
IILL

LL
RR

DD

RROOCCKKLLAANNDD RRDD

SS
DDEESS HHOONN RRDD

LL
IITT

HH
OO

NN
IIAA IINN DDUU SSTTRRIIAALL BBLLVVDD

CC
LL

AA
IIRR

MM
OO

NN
T T

R R
D D

G
R

E
S

H
A

M
 R

D
G

R
E

S
H

A
M

 R
D

UUNN IIOONN GGRROO VVEE RRDD

SALEM RD
SALEM RD

RR
AA

YY
SS

RR
DD

CC
LL

IIFF TT
OO

NN
RR

DD

CC EEDDAARR GG RR
OO
VVEE RRDD

E
 L

A
K

E
E

 L
A

K
E

D
R

 N
E

D
R

 N
E

BBRR AANNNN EENN RRDD

RR
O O

CC
KK

CC
HH

AA
PP

EE
LL

RR
DD

2
N

D
2
N

D

A
V

E
 N

E
A

V
E

 N
E

WWAARRDD LLAAKKEE RRDD

N AVONDALE

N AVONDALE
PLZPLZ

THOMPSON MILL RDTHOMPSON MILL RD

HH
O O

L L
C C

O O
M M

B B
E E

R R
D D

CONSTITUTIONCONSTITUTION

RDRD

CC
OO

NN
YY

EE RRSS

SS

TT

C
A

N
D

L
E

R
C

A
N

D
L

E
R

R
D

 N
E

R
D

 N
E

LL IINN EECCRREE SSTT
RRDD

MMOOUU NNTTAAIINN DDRR

MMAALLLL
PPKKWW

YY

A A
R R

C C
A A

D D
I IA A

A A
V V

E E

CC OOOO KK
RRDD

HHAAYYDDEENN
QQ UUAARRRRYY RRDD

OOLLDD HH IILLLLAA NNDDAALLEE DD RR

SS
NN

AA
PP

FF
II NN

GG

EERRRRDD

AA
LL
LL
GG

OO
OO

DD
RR

DD

22
NN

DD
AA

VV
EE

K K
L L

O O
N N

DD
I IKK

EE
RR

DD

SS
C C

A A
N N

D D
L L
E E

R R
S S

T T

T
U

R
N

E
R

T
U

R
N

E
R

H
IL

L
 R

D
H

IL
L

 R
D

SS
II NN

DD
II AA

NN
CC

RR
EE

EE
KK

DD
RR

S
 H

A
IR

S
T

O
N

 R
D

S
 H

A
IR

S
T

O
N

 R
D

CC
AA

NN
DD

LL
EE

RR

RR
DD

SS
EE

DD OOGG WWOOOODD

FFAARRMM RR DD

KKEENNSSIINN GGTTOO NN RRDD

EE

LLAAKKEE DDRR

CC
OO

LLUU
MM

BB
II AA

DDRR

CC
LLAA IIRR

EE MM
OONNTT

AAVVEE

NN
IINN

DD
IIAA

NN

CC

RR
EE

EE
KK

DD
RR

KKAATTIIEE
KK

EE
RR

RR
DD

RR

PP
EE

AA
CC

HH
CC

RR
EE

SS
TT

RR
DD

WWAALLDD RROOPP RRDD

FF
LL

AA
KK

EE
SS

MM
IILL

LL
RR
DD

SSTT EEPPHHEENNSS OONN
RR DD

SS
HH
AA
DD

OO
WW

RR
OO

CC
KK

DD
RR

NN
DD

EE
SS

HH
OO

NN
RR

DD

MM
AA

RR
TT

I INN
RR

DD

CC
HH

UU
RR
CC

HH
SS

TT

N N
H H

AA
IIRR

SS
TT

OO
NN

RR
DD

NN
AA

RR
CC

AA
DD

IIAA
AA
VV

EE

WW
OO

OO
DD

RR
OO

WW
DD

RR

RR
OO

WW
LL
AA

NN
DD

RR
DD

CCLLEEVVEE LL
AA
NN

DD
RR

DD

EE
TRINITYTRINITY

PLPL

VALLEYVALLEY
BROOK RDBROOK RD

HOWARDHOWARD
CIRCIR

HOWARDHOWARD
ST SEST SE

WELLANDWELLAND
AVEAVE

N STONEN STONE
MOUNTAINMOUNTAIN

LITHONIA RDLITHONIA RD

MAXMAX
CLELANDCLELAND

BLVDBLVD

S HOWARDS HOWARD
STST

Lithonia

Stone
Mountain

Atlanta

Decatur Avondale
Estates

Pine
Lake

DeKalb County GIS Disclaimer
The maps and data, contained on DeKalb County ’s Geographic Information System (GIS) are subject to constant change.  While DeKalb County
strives to provide accurate and up-to-date information, the information is provided “as is” without warranty, representation or guarantee of any kind
as to the content, seq uence, accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any of the database information provided herein.  DeKalb County explicitly
disclaims all representations and warranties, including, without limitation, the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.
In no event shall DeKalb County be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential damages whatsoever resulting from loss of use, data, or profits,
whether in an action of contract, negligence, or other actions, arising out of or in connection with the use of the maps and/or data herein provided.
The maps and data are for illustration purposes only and should not be relied upon for any reason. The maps and data are not suitable for site-specific
decision-making nor should it be construed or used as a legal description.  The areas depicted by maps and data are approximate, and are not necessarily
accurate to surveying or engineering standards. 

Date Printed: 5/12/2014

Proposed East Metro DeKalb CID Legend
EastMetroDeKalbCID

ProposedEastMetroCID
Unknown

C

NC

DeKalb County, GA

D
o
c
u
m

e
n

t 
P

a
th

: 
M

:\
A

d
m

in
\c

fg
\A

rc
M

a
p

\T
e

m
p

la
te

A
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e
.m

x
d

Data Source: 



Exhibit B – List of Tax Parcels 





























REV. 10/ 02
DEKALB COUNTY ITEM NO.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

HEARING TYPE BUSINESS AGENDA/ MINUTES ACTION TYPE

Preliminary MEETING DATE: April 28, 2015
Resolution

SUBSTITUTE

SUBJECT: Expansion of the East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District

DEPARTMENT:     Board of Commissioners PUBLIC HEARING: YES 0 NO

ATTACHMENT:     0 YES    No INFORMATION Commissioner Stan Watson- 7

CONTACT:  Commissioner Larry Johnson- 3

PAGES:      FT]      PHONE NUMBER: 404- 371- 3681/ 404- 371- 2425

PURPOSE:

To allow for the Expansion of the East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District

NEED/ IMPACT:

The East Metro DeKalb CID, in order to increase the ability to improve the East Metro DeKalb
business community, needs to include additional property owners within the South DeKalb area.

This expansion would allow for additional property owners to join and participate in the self-taxing
district' s improvement programs within the South DeKalb area.

All new property owners are within the boundary of the East Metro DeKalb CID. The map has only
minor revisions.

RECOMMENDATION( S):

To approve the expansion of the East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District





East
Frederick L. Daniels, Jr., Chairman

neKolh Robert " Trey" Ragsdale, Vice-Chairman
Trichelle Simmons. Secretary

Harold Buckley, Treasurer

East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District
James Clausell

2724 Wesley Chapel Road
Van Jokes

360909 Jennifer Parker

Decatur, Georgia 30036 Nathan Richardson

April 27, 2015

Dear Commissioner Stan Watson and Commissioner Larry Johnson,

The East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District requests that DeKalb County authorize the

expansion of the East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District to include the property owners
outlined in the Tax Commissioners' certification letter dated April 27, 2015.

T ank you for your consideration!

ncerely,

i

edar4ek L. Daniels, Jr.

Board of Directors. Chairman

East Metro DeKalb CID

Partner • Promote • Grow

www.eastmetrocid. com



CLAUDIA G. LAWSON

Tax Commissioner

DeKalb County, GA

Office of the Tax Commissioner

April 27, 2015

RE:     East Metro Community Improvement District Expansion

Dear Nicole M. Hall:

I hereby certify that a majority of the owners within the East Metro Community Improvement
District (" East Metro CID") as defined by the attached list, representing at least 75% of the total
property value have consented to expand the Last Metro CID.  Attached is a spreadsheet entitled

East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District Expansion"   that identifies the

consenting/non consenting owners and the value of their respective properties.

Based on the information provided to our office, the number of property owners within the East
Metro CID providing written consent is 5, which represents a majority ( 56%) of the total number of

owners.  The percent by value of real property within the East Metro CID owned by the consenting
majority is 77%.

This correspondence is sent pursuant to Section 4 of the Local Act of the Georgia Legislature
governing the creation of community improvement districts in DeKalb County, which is set forth at
2008 Ga. Laws 3817.

Sincerely,

Pamela Partain

Director, Property Tax

7nnnn fAnA nOO Annnl



u

H
V

U
V

u
U

U
u

u
U

V
U

z
Z

z
z

rn
u

i

v
p

O
  

O
C

O
O

O
O

N
O

O
O

O
O

f
`
 
 
r

O
w

O
N

O
0

0
m

O
O

O
O

O
m

O
M

N
W

N
m

N
w

w
O

O
O

d
V

w
O

r
a

r
`
  

a
O

N
O

M
Ooil

O
6

V
t

r
.  

N
W

1

0
1

V
i

v
1

O
O

r
`
  

r`  
V

V
t

u
l

m
N

lD
V

N
V

1
V

N
N

N
V

V
W

m
N

V
1

O
1

V
'  

V

0
N

N
D

N
O

W

N
V

F
V

Y
N

V
1

V
l

V
T

L
T

V
F

t
R

N
V

?
 
i
/

1
V

T
V

l

Out0wNmWm
a
^  

N

mn
C

d

a
a
°
       

v

O.     
2      =  = U

'       }
  

0
0

0av
X

O
Y

W
W

W
W

O
U

I
D

  =
  

z
 
 
 
 

a
6

a
x

a
J

o
a

o
a

H
Z

O
Z

O
O

  
y

0
v

OF
00

00
l7

V
V

V
U

v
N

v
l7

g
U

z
 
 
}
 
 

z
r

r
r

r
o

0
Z

_
 
 O

z
_

 
 
>

 
 Z

d
J

J
J

J
m

U
I

N

a
z
 
 
>

 
 

Z
  >

  
Z

u
t

N
N

V
f

G
a

v
U

m O
u

0u
0

3
3

3
3

U
a

U
n

o
v

a
o

io
N

 
 
'.
 
 

u
t

w
m

m
m

m
m

o
n

u
t

m
o

0
0

m
w

o
o

m
m

c
m

o
N

o
a
 
 
.
-
 
 

m
m

0
0

0
0

a
N

t
0

N
lO

V
m

m
F-

Yv
O

0
3

N
zzL
L

V
I

x
U

O
O

J
U

llJ
w

u
U

Y
Z

V
u

u
z

J
 
 
_

z
z

z
0

w
0

 
 
¢

Q
m

v
t

a
c

H
Z

uW
1-

Z

a
J

Q
Z

z
z

w

o
c

Q
w

w
w

x
 
 
 
 
 
 
°
—

' 
 

0
Q

  =
  

m

0
w

Z
Z

Z
 
 
-
 
 

U
`
  =

  
x

w

p
m

0
K

K
W

Z
Q

w
ad

a
Z

W
W

w
 
 
}
 
 

x
0

a
o

a
Z

O
      !-

w3
  >

      
a

o
mQ

0
Q  =

a
a

0
o

x
 
 
=

 
 
x

z

p
o

m
o

o
o
o

0
o

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

J
t
r

I
t

W
O

O
O

O
O

N
O

O
O

O
O

U
m

M
M

M
T

om
p

N
N

N
N

N

Z



p
x
w

-
t

I
N

.,
rv

-
W

n
z
o

,

z
2

N
E

A

L
FJ

o

IL
a

CLx

L
E;

L
U

 " 
Q

) 
LLJ



































REV. 10/02  
 

 
DEKALB COUNTY 

 
ITEM NO. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
HEARING TYPE 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

 
ACTION TYPE 

Action  
MEETING DATE:  August 9, 2011 Resolution  

 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Stone Mountain Community Improvement District  
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT: 

 
Board of Commissioners  

 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
  YES  ⌧NO 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 
 PAGES: 

 
   ⌧  YES    No   
 
 
 

 
 

 
INFORMATION  
CONTACT: 
 
PHONE NUMBER: 

  
Commissioner Elaine Boyer 
Commissioner  Sharon Barnes 
Sutton 
Commissioner Stan Watson  
 
404-371-2844, 404-371-4907, 
404-371-3053 

 Deferred 7/26/11
PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is consideration and approval of the Cooperation Agreement between DeKalb 
County and the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District. 
 
 
 
NEED/IMPACT: 
 
Creation of the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District was approved by the governing authority of 
DeKalb County and the Local Act requires that the services and facilities to be furnished within the CID shall be 
provided for in a cooperation agreement executed jointly by the CID and the county. The county and the CID desire 
to enter into a cooperation agreement to effectuate the organization and operation of the CID in accordance with the 
Local Act.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The recommendation is approval of this cooperation agreement between DeKalb County and the Stone Mountain 
Community Improvement District.  
 

4 















REV. 10/02  
 

 
DEKALB COUNTY 

 
ITEM NO. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

 
 

 
 

 
HEARING TYPE 

 
ACTION TYPE 

Preliminary  
MEETING DATE:  March 10, 2015 Resolution 

 
 
 
SUBJECT:     Agreement with the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District 
  Commission Districts – 1, 4, and 7 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT: 

 
Public Works - Transportation 

 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
  YES    NO 

  
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT: 
 
 
 PAGES: 

 
      YES     No  
 
 
 

 
 

 
INFORMATION  
CONTACT: 
 
PHONE NUMBER: 

 
David Pelton 
 
 
770-492-5206  

 
PURPOSE: 
 
To consider entering into an Agreement with the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District (CID) to allow for 
county participation in projects sponsored by the CID; and 
 
To consider authorizing up to $100,000.00 in payments to the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District; and  
 
To consider authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to execute all necessary documents pertaining to this project.  
 
 
NEED/IMPACT: 
 
On May 27, 2014, the Board of Commissioners appropriated $200,000 in HOST funds for transportation-related projects 
in the Tucker-Northlake Community Improvement District and the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District.  
The proposed agreement with the Stone Mountain CID will allow the county to contribute a portion of these funds to 
projects sponsored by the Stone Mountain CID.  The exact projects are not yet determined, but will likely include radius 
improvements at various intersections in the Stone Mountain CID to improve freight mobility and safety. This agreement is 
similar to agreements DeKalb County has entered into with Perimeter CID and Tucker-Northlake CID. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
Enter into an Agreement with the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District to allow for county participation in 
projects sponsored by the CID; and 
 
Authorize up to $100,000.00 in payments to the Stone Mountain Community Improvement District; and 
 
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute all necessary documents pertaining to this project.  
 
 
 

13 





































Properties in Dekalb County Tax District S15 (East Metro CID/Stonecrest)

Parcel ID Owner Street # Address

15 065 01 028 T AND J INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT 4600 CLEVELAND RD 

16 023 02 003 ATLANTA LIQUIDATION LLC 5075 MINOLA DR 

16 024 01 014 GEORGIA ALABAMA COMMERCIAL INV 5033 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 025 01 002 GREENLAND SNAPFINGER LLC 2534 MILLER RD 

16 025 01 024 GREENLAND SNAPFINGER LLC 2544 MILLER RD 

16 039 03 041 MCBRIDE RESEARCH LABORATORIES INC 2272 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 04 056 LIDL US OPERATIONS LLC 6038 COVINGTON HWY 

16 040 01 016 FS MCALLISTER HOLDINGS LLC 2568 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 02 041 SHAW STONECREST PROPERTIES LLC 5275 DIVIDEND DR 

16 041 03 007 ANTHONYS DIRT PANOL LLC 2853 PANOLA RD 

16 041 04 012 DECKO QUALITY SERVICES LLC 2671 PANOLA RD 

16 042 06 051 PEACHLAND INVESTMENT GROUP LLC 2984 PANOLA RD 

16 120 01 015 LEVY JONATHAN L 6480 CHUPP RD 

16 137 15 017 HOWARD LEMUEL 2716 EVANS MILL RD 

16 138 03 033 SMITH ROBERT  PRIDE TERRENCE 6651 HILLANDALE DR 

15 065 01 041 T & J INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT 4670 CLEVELAND RD 

16 023 02 036 JERRY TILLEM RESIDUAL TRUST 3024 MILLER RD 

16 024 02 001 DPIF2 GA 3 MILLER ROAD LLC 2800 MILLER RD 

16 024 03 006 KHATRI RAKESH 2944 MILLER RD 

16 039 03 043 HATCO LLC 2280 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 01 002 SHAW STONECREST PROPERTIES LLC 5373 PENN CIR 

16 041 04 009 SNAPFINGER BP LLC 5372 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 089 02 010 SUNSHINE Z LLC 6819 COVINGTON HWY 

16 104 04 002 AIJ COVINGTON LLC 7101 COVINGTON HWY 

16 137 05 035 PHILLIPS RENEE 7681 COVINGTON HWY 

16 137 09 007 DISCOUNT AUTO PARTS INC 6747 OLD COVINGTON RD 

16 039 03 033 PCB 2364 LLC 2320 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 03 045 HATCO LLC 2292 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 041 02 009 5395 SNAPFINGER WOODS DRIVE LLC 5395 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 041 06 016 GAHC3 LITHONIA GA MOB LLC 5461 HILLANDALE DR 

16 088 02 006 SELMAN FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 5991 HILLANDALE DR 

16 104 04 021 WAUGH AND WONG LLC 2522 LITHONIA WEST DR 

16 120 02 005 CL RP STONECREST LLC 6600 OLD HILLANDALE DR 

16 024 01 004 SNAPFINGER BP LLC 2811 MILLER RD 

16 024 03 007 SNAPFINGER PARK DRIVE LLC 5246 SNAPFINGER PARK DR 

16 025 01 014 THOMAS HUGHES DECATUR PROP 5020 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 026 01 003 FRANCIS MICHAEL 5907 COVINGTON HWY 

16 039 03 032 PCB 2364 LLC 2300 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 03 042 HATCO LLC 2276 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 05 001 SNAPFINGER BP LLC 2375 PANOLA RD 

16 040 06 001 SHAW STONECREST PROPERTIES LLC 5277 TRUMAN DR 

16 041 07 015 REVA PROPERTIES INC 5354 SNAPFINGER PARK DR 

16 042 03 005 G B E LLC 2911 PANOLA RD 

16 104 04 015 WAUGH AND WONG LLC 2536 LITHONIA WEST DR 

16 120 01 054 HERITAGE FAMILY DEVELOPMENT LP 6582 CHUPP RD 

16 137 05 015 3R GREENWOOD INC 2800 EVANS MILL RD 

16 137 15 009 HARBOUR CAPITAL LLC 2708 EVANS MILL RD 

15 065 01 003 TRAN SANG 3270 SNAPFINGER RD 

16 039 03 009 PCB 2364 LLC 2310 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 01 018 SHAW STONECREST PROPERTIES LLC 5360 PENN CIR 

16 041 01 008 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN 5440 HILLANDALE DR 

16 041 04 001 MARSHALL JOSEPH D JR 2663 PANOLA RD 

16 041 04 013 MARSHALL JOSEPH D JR 2661 PANOLA RD 

16 088 02 001 SELMAN FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 5999 HILLANDALE DR 

16 105 04 009 DUBLIN DOREN 6453 CHUPP RD 

16 108 02 002 VERTICAL BRIDGE AM LLC 3610 EVANS MILL RD 

16 120 01 052 HERITAGE FAMILY DEVELOPMENT LP 6535 CHUPP RD 

16 137 05 004 PHILLIPS RENEE 7675 COVINGTON HWY 



Properties in Dekalb County Tax District S15 (East Metro CID/Stonecrest)

Parcel ID Owner Street # Address

16 023 03 015 MAXIMUS REAL ESTATE GROUP LLC 5053 CHATOOGA DR 

16 025 01 021 THOMAS HUGHES DECATUR PROPERTIES LLC 5022 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 026 01 004 FRANCIS MICHAEL 5919 COVINGTON HWY 

16 039 03 035 PCB 2364 LLC 2340 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 04 057 ICHORD PAUL S 6088 COVINGTON HWY 

16 041 02 010 FIRST SOUTHERN BANK 2727 PANOLA RD 

16 041 07 012 MCDONALD'S CORPORATION 2791 PANOLA RD 

16 089 02 011 SUNSHINE Z LLC 6835 COVINGTON HWY 

16 105 04 003 KIMBERLY OBRIEN 2009 REVO 6450 OLD HILLANDALE DR 

16 137 09 002 DISCOUNT AUTO PARTS INC 7522 COVINGTON HWY 

16 138 02 013 MCDONALDS CORPORATION 2826 EVANS MILL RD 

16 039 03 034 PCB 2364 LLC 2330 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 04 055 WH CAPITAL LLC 2255 PANOLA RD 

16 039 05 010 MARSHALLS OF MA INC 2295 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 01 022 PANOLA CROSSINGS LLC 2617 PANOLA RD 

16 041 07 016 MCDONALDS CORPORATION 5387 PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 

16 042 04 003 PANOLA SW LLC 5384 FAIRINGTON RD 

16 042 04 004 GUIDED FINANCIAL LLC 5410 FAIRINGTON RD 

16 042 06 052 STEWART RON L 2998 PANOLA RD 

16 104 04 008 AIJ COVINGTON LLC 7077 COVINGTON HWY 

16 120 02 015 STONE TERRACE II GA LLC 6610 OLD HILLANDALE DR 

16 121 03 017 ROSWELL HOLDINGS LLC 7137 COVINGTON HWY 

16 121 03 019 ROSWELL HOLDINGS LLC 7129 COVINGTON HWY 

16 137 05 038 3R GREENWOOD INC 2802 EVANS MILL RD 

16 138 03 019 LEW HUDSON FAMILY LIMITED 6641 HILLANDALE DR 

16 025 01 004 GREENLAND SNAPFINGER LLC 5152 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 025 01 016 THOMAS HUGHES DECATUR PROP 5024 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 

16 039 03 044 HATCO LLC 2282 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 039 04 058 KS ENTERPRISES LLC 6092 COVINGTON HWY 

16 039 04 062 LIDL US OPERATIONS LLC 6032 COVINGTON HWY 

16 040 01 001 ELWARD MICHAEL L AND LORI D REVOCABLE TR 2657 PANOLA RD 

16 040 01 025 MIKEITZ REALTY SNAPFINGER GEORGIA 2460 PARK CENTRAL BLVD 

16 040 01 040 PANOLA ICY DELIGHTS LLC 2621 PANOLA RD 

16 040 04 007 PCB 2364 LLC 5352 MORSE DR 

16 041 06 017 GBAM PROPERTIES LLC 5404 HILLANDALE PARK CT 

16 041 07 017 OLADAMI LLC 5322 SNAPFINGER PARK DR 

16 088 02 005 SELMAN FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 6029 HILLANDALE DR 

16 089 02 001 SRI REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES LLC 6689 COVINGTON HWY 

16 107 01 030 ALLEN FAMILY INVESTMENTS LLC 3235 EVANS MILL RD 

16 120 02 012 CL RP STONECREST LLC 6659 CHUPP RD 

16 137 05 034 SURYADEVARA NITYANANDA 7705 COVINGTON HWY 

16 138 01 002 GLENCOR SERVICES INC 2979 KLONDIKE RD 

16 151 03 017 HAVERTY FURNITURE COMPANIES 7990 MALL PKWY 

16 151 03 019 CS STONECREST LLC 7848 STONECREST SQ 

16 182 01 013 BJ LITHONIA LLC 3150 TURNER HILL RD 

16 182 01 017 REDEEM PROPERTIES LLC 7566 HONEYCREEK CT 

16 151 03 018 CS STONECREST LLC 7846 STONECREST SQ 

16 170 01 026 ROHAN AND RUDR USA INC 7331 STONECREST CONCOURSE  

16 171 01 020 SAQ ENTERPRISE INC 8065 MALL PKWY 

16 183 01 010 MCDONALDS CORPORATION 2964 TURNER HILL RD 

16 171 01 021 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH 8011 MALL PKWY 

16 151 03 015 NDR ENTERPRISES AT STONECREST 7890 MALL RING RD 

16 171 01 008 KU YUNG CHIEN 3207 TURNER HILL RD 

16 138 03 034 SMITH ROBERT  PRIDE TERRENCE 6653 HILLANDALE DR 


	0.CID Agenda 091421v2
	1. CID Minutes 083121 JHB
	2. East Metro CID MOU
	3. Map of East Metro DeKalb CID, with outline of City of Stonecrest.
	4. DeKalb BOC Resolution East Metro DeKalb CID 2014-05-13_ITEMI4
	5. East Metro CID Expansion BOC Resolution April 28, 2015
	6. Stonecrest Charter Senate Bill 208 As Passed Section 1.06 Stonecrest Lithonia Industrial Park Community Improvement District
	7. Stone Mountain CID & County Cooperation Agreement August 9, 2011 I1
	8. Stone Mountain CID & County Master Agreement March 10, 2015 H4
	9. Stonecrest  Lithonia Industrial Park CID Consent Form Daniel Kelly 2601 South Stone Mountain Lithonia Road
	10. Stonecrest East Metro CID Member Properties



